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          1  COMMITTEE ON STANDARDS AND ETHICS

          2                 CHAIRPERSON MALAVE-DILAN: The meeting

          3  of the Standards and Ethics Committee is called to

          4  order. Members will be joining us shortly. There are

          5  a few who are at meetings, and also the Speaker will

          6  be with us this morning.

          7                 I call this meeting of the Committee

          8  on Standards and Ethics to order.

          9                 Good morning, ladies and gentlemen, I

         10  am Council Member Martin Malave-Dilan, Chair of the

         11  Council's Committee on Standards and Ethics.

         12                 Today's public hearing will be on an

         13  oversight hearing on the Conflicts of Interest

         14  Board. Charter, Chapter 68, charges the Conflicts of

         15  Interest Board with the interpretation and

         16  enforcement of the provisions of the Conflict of

         17  Interest Code, Chapter 68. The Board has the

         18  jurisdiction over every City officer and employee,

         19  except unpaid members of advisory committees,

         20  including members and employees of the Council. The

         21  Board renders advisory opinions concerning conflicts

         22  of interest and administers the financial disclosure

         23  law. The Board is also empowered to receive

         24  complaints and hold hearings and may direct the

         25  Department of Investigation to investigate and
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          2  report on ethics-related matters.

          3                 The Board is authorized to impose

          4  fines for violations of the Conflict of Interest

          5  Code, although it may only recommend penalties

          6  against members and employees of this Council.

          7                 The Board may also make

          8  recommendations to the appointing authority with

          9  respect to suspension or removal from office or

         10  employment.

         11                 Additionally, the Board is mandated

         12  to undertake training and education efforts for

         13  public servants with respect to the requirements of

         14  the conflict of interest code.

         15                 It is also required to present an

         16  annual report to the Mayor and the Council. Finally,

         17  the Board has the rule-making authority.

         18                 I would now like to call on Mr. Mark

         19  Davies, or Mr. Benito Romano, Acting Chair of the

         20  Board, to come to the witness table.

         21                 ACTING CHAIR ROMANO: Good morning,

         22  Mr. Chairman. I am Benito Romano, the Acting Chair

         23  of the Conflicts of Interest Board. I have with me

         24  this morning members of our staff who can assist me

         25  in answering any questions you may have.
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          2                 During my presentation today, I will

          3  focus on five areas of the Board's responsibility

          4  under Chapter 68:

          5                 1) Training and education.

          6                 2) Responses to increase from City

          7  Employees for Guidance.

          8                 3) Administrative Rules.

          9                 4) Enforcement proceedings.

         10                 5) Financial Disclosure.

         11                 I will also briefly address budget

         12  personnel and MIS matters.

         13                 First, let me start with training and

         14  education.

         15                 Thus far in 1999, under the Direction

         16  of the Board's training and educator Less Taub, the

         17  Board has conducted 87 training classes compared

         18  with 54 at this time last year.

         19                 The 61 percent increase stems from

         20  the Board's additional training personnel coming on

         21  board in the second half of 1999, and the unit's

         22  increased emphasis on actively reaching out to other

         23  agencies, especially the Board of Education.

         24                 This year we conducted classes for

         25  the first time for the Department of Sanitation, the
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          2  Police Department's Executive Development Program,

          3  the Department of Correction and the Board of

          4  Standards and Appeals, and we are about to begin

          5  classes also for the first time at DEP, DCAS and the

          6  Housing Authority.

          7                 These training sessions are in

          8  addition to our ongoing programs with the Department

          9  of Finance, the Procurement Training Institute and

         10  the Department of Citywide Administrative Services

         11  Citywide orientation program for new city employees,

         12  plus periodic classes at a host of other agencies.

         13                 We have also begun to work with the

         14  training and legal divisions with the Department of

         15  Transportation on an initiative to develop an ethics

         16  training curriculum that DOT's training staff can

         17  present to the agencies 4,000 employees.

         18                 Thanks to the efforts of DOT general

         19  Counsel, Seth Cummings, who committed to having all

         20  DOT employees receive ethics training, and DOT

         21  Learning Center Director Eleanor Depalma and the

         22  Learning Center Staff has devoted much time and

         23  effort to studying the ethics laws and our training

         24  materials to prepare for delivering DOT's own

         25  classes.
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          2                 If we are to have any chance of

          3  meeting our charter mandate to train all public

          4  servants in the conflicts of interest law, we must

          5  develop such a train the trainer approach to

          6  training.

          7                 DOT's hard work and initiatives

          8  places them at the forefront of this critical board

          9  program.

         10                 One factor has worked in our favor in

         11  convincing some public servants to receive chapter

         12  68 training, namely the introduction of mandatory

         13  continuing legal education for all attorneys

         14  licensed in New York State.

         15                 We are therefore now in the process

         16  of seeking a state certification of our Chapter 68

         17  courses for continuing legal education credits so

         18  City attorneys can receive credit so City attorneys

         19  can receive credit for attending our classes.

         20                 While very impressive, these efforts

         21  still amount to a drop in the bucket. In terms of

         22  our Charter mandate to inform all New York City

         23  public servants about their obligations under the

         24  ethics law, we continue to struggle to convince

         25  certain agencies of the importance of providing
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          2  conflicts of interest training when they are not

          3  charter mandated to receive it or provide it.

          4                 For example, we have spoken with the

          5  training staffs of a few large agencies about a

          6  train the trainer program, similar to DOT's, but

          7  once they discover they are not legally required to

          8  provide the training, their interest rapidly wanes.

          9  We continue to press the Administration for their

         10  support in encouraging agencies to offer ethics

         11  training, to craft a charter amended mandating this

         12  training for all City employees, and to push these

         13  reluctant agencies to provide ethics training.

         14                 Let me say a few words about the

         15  Board of Education. A year ago our training at the

         16  Board of Education was negligible. Nearly a third of

         17  this year's classes were for the Board of Education

         18  personnel at the central district and school levels,

         19  and we continue to make major progress in our

         20  outreach to DOE.

         21                 Since September, briefings have been

         22  done for principles of nearly all the City's 200

         23  plus high schools, which will be followed by

         24  scheduling classes at the individual schools. We are

         25  meeting with elementary and middle school principals
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          2  at district-wide sessions and have already conducted

          3  classes at several middle and elementary schools.

          4                 Last Spring we produced a leaflet for

          5  community school board members, and conducted a

          6  briefing on the law for school board candidates.

          7                 Last month we produced a BOE specific

          8  booklet containing the answers to frequently asked

          9  questions. Over 1,000 copies of the booklet have

         10  already been distributed to BOE employees at

         11  training classes. We have also produced a leaflet

         12  that the Board of Ed is planning to distribute to

         13  all of its 130,000 employees. All of our trainers,

         14  Less Taub, Lori Dennman, Kevin Moore and Joel

         15  Rogers, are taking responsibility for ethics

         16  training at the BOE.

         17                 Speaking of publications -- I see

         18  that the Speaker has joined us. Good morning, Mr.

         19  Speaker.

         20                 SPEAKER VALLONE: Good morning.

         21                 ACTING CHAIR ROMANO: We have updated

         22  and retitled as Ethics 2000, a plain language guide

         23  to the Conflicts of Interest Law, and it's rolling

         24  off the presses as we speak.

         25                 We have distributed advance copies to
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          2  you this morning, in addition to the new Board of

          3  Education publication noted above, we have also

          4  created new leaflets on the rules for seeking

          5  temporary employment and on the rules governing

          6  community board members.

          7                 Our new publication equipment, the

          8  purchase of which was made possible by funds the

          9  Council added to the Board's budget is now in place.

         10  All our publications, including our annual report,

         11  are now produced in house, in color, in the

         12  quantities we need with the quality we want,

         13  maximizing efficiency while minimizing expense and

         14  inventories.

         15                 You have some examples before you,

         16  including the latest copy of our Newsletter Ethical

         17  Times, and the Board of Education Booklet I just

         18  mentioned. Our training and education assistant

         19  Martine Multedor, has responsibility for overseeing

         20  the production and distribution of thousands of our

         21  publications annually.

         22                 We also do training in the form of

         23  seminars. The Board's fifth Seminar in Ethics in New

         24  York City Government, co-sponsored by New York Law

         25  School, was an outstanding success, with almost 400
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          2  participants on hand, the most ever, including the

          3  Speaker and the Mayor.

          4                 We were particularly pleased that the

          5  Speaker was able to participate as a keynote

          6  speaker. Our 2000 seminar will be held on March

          7  16th.

          8                 One of the most successful parts of

          9  this year's seminar was a workshop on ethics issues

         10  for firms doing business with the City.

         11                 The goal here is to inform the vendor

         12  community of the requirement that City employees

         13  must follow when dealing with the private sector, so

         14  vendors will do their part to avoid putting public

         15  servants in situations that potentially violate the

         16  Conflicts of Interest Law.

         17                 As a follow-up, last month we held a

         18  mini-seminar co-hosted by the Procurement Policy

         19  Board and the Comptroller's Office, for the members

         20  of the PPB vendors advisory board.

         21                 We will continue to work with them to

         22  increase our outreach to companies and

         23  not-for-profit agencies doing business with the City

         24  to further their awareness and understanding of the

         25  law.
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          2                 Perhaps our most effective and

          3  entertaining educational tool is our ethic gain

          4  called it's a question of ethics. Class participants

          5  enjoy watching a video of the game hosted by former

          6  Finance Commissioner and Council Minority Leader

          7  Fred Cerullo, but the most fun and learning comes

          8  from actually playing the game.

          9                 We were limited in our opportunities

         10  to use it in training class because the game board

         11  was quite large and difficult to transport. We were

         12  able to solve this problem.  With the funds provided

         13  by the Council, we have created a computerized

         14  version of the game using a software program called

         15  Game Show Pro. The game can now be run on a laptop

         16  computer connected to a light weight video

         17  projector.

         18                 Our staff will briefly demonstrate

         19  this game for you after I complete my presentation.

         20                 Another valuable source of

         21  information on the conflicts of interest law is now

         22  available through the Board's new phone system.

         23  Callers can hear recorded information on Conflicts

         24  of Interest and Financial disclosure topics and

         25  automatically receive by fax reformatted versions of
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          2  our 16 leaflets. This service is available 24 hours

          3  a day, 365 days a year, just by calling our main

          4  number. Staff will also demonstrate the system for

          5  you at the end of my presentation.

          6                 We continue to upgrade our site on

          7  the City's Home Page, the text of Chapter 68, the

          8  Board's rules and the financial disclosure law can

          9  now be downloaded and frequently asked questions are

         10  now available for all of the topics covered by our

         11  leaflets.

         12                 As we develop plans to improve the

         13  site, we will also plan to hire a web site

         14  consultant, as recommended by DoITT, who is familiar

         15  with the City's internal protocols.

         16                 With this assistance, we hope they

         17  will soon link our site with appropriate state and

         18  federal agencies, have our advisory opinions in

         19  searchable form and eventually have our attorney of

         20  the day answer inquiries via e.mail.

         21                 Last year, we also noted in our

         22  testimony, that our presence on the Internet means

         23  that virtually anyone with a computer and a modem

         24  can learn about the board.

         25                 As we continue to welcome visitors
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          2  from other cities, states and nations who wish to

          3  learn about the City's ethics laws, this point is

          4  reinforced as many of our visitors arrive carrying

          5  copies of our materials downloaded from our web

          6  site. This year we welcomed visitors from Italy, the

          7  Republic of China, Taiwan and Vietnam.

          8                 Last month we also celebrated our

          9  tenth anniversary and the 40th anniversary of the

         10  creation of our predecessor agency, the New York

         11  City Board of Ethics, perhaps the first Ethics Board

         12  in the country. Colleagues in government and in the

         13  private sector, as well as former board members and

         14  staff were invited to a reception in the lobby of

         15  the Surrogates Court Building. The event was

         16  sponsored by Board members Jane Parvor and myself

         17  and our respective law firm Kaye Schuler and Wilke

         18  Farr. We were honored that the City Council chose to

         19  celebrate the occasion with a proclamation, which

         20  the Chair, Chairman Malave-Dilan presented to the

         21  Board, and which cited the Board's historical

         22  commitment to preserving trust placed in the City's

         23  public servants. On behalf of the Board, I thank

         24  you, again.

         25                 Before I conclude my discussion of
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          2  our training and education efforts this year, I

          3  would like to again emphasize our gratitude to the

          4  Council for your strong support, in particular, your

          5  budgetary support, this critical area of Board

          6  responsibility.

          7                 The substantial gains this year that

          8  I have just reviewed simply would not have been

          9  possible without that support.

         10                 Now let me return to requests from

         11  City employees for guidance.

         12                 From January through November of

         13  1999, the Board received 418 written requests for

         14  advice from current and former public servants as to

         15  the propriety of their proposed activities or

         16  interest under Chapter 68. As the Board's training

         17  and education and enforcement efforts make the board

         18  ever more widely known, we can expect these numbers

         19  to continue to grow.

         20                 We also feel that between five and 15

         21  oral requests for advice each day, over 1,500 for

         22  the year.

         23                 During the first 11 months of this

         24  year, the Board issued 253 staff letters, 121 waiver

         25  letters, four B2 letters and 23 Board letters,
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          2  orders or advisory opinions.

          3                 These 401 responses reflect a ten

          4  percent increase over the 364 letters, orders and

          5  opinions issued in the first 11 months of 1998.

          6                 Table 1, which has been distributed,

          7  summarizes these results.

          8                 To maintain the high quality of its

          9  written device, the Board in 1999 computerized its

         10  index of ethics opinions, ethics topics and filed in

         11  retrievable form useful resource material, from

         12  staff e.mail exchanges to advisory opinions.

         13                 As of December 1, the Board has

         14  pending before it 51 written requests for advice in

         15  contrast to 70 written requests pending at this time

         16  last year, a reduction in 27 percent.

         17                 These excellent results are

         18  attributable to our superb legal advice unit, headed

         19  by our new Deputy Counsel Wayne Hawley, formerly the

         20  Executive Director of MFY Legal Services, with

         21  Associate Counsel Jennifer Siegel, Assistant Counsel

         22  Bonnie Beth Greenwall, and Patricia Green, Assistant

         23  to the Unit.

         24                 The Board continues to distribute its

         25  formal advisory opinions to public servants and the
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          2  public and to publish them in the City record and to

          3  include them on Lexus and West Law.

          4                 Within the next few months our

          5  advisory opinions will be added to our web site in

          6  searchable form.

          7                 Our attorneys continue to write

          8  articles for publication.

          9                 Just last month Ms. Siegel and Mr.

         10  Davies published pieces in a new journal of the New

         11  York State Bar Association. John Salzman, our

         12  Director of Enforcement, and Mr. Davies, contributed

         13  Chapters to a book entitled ethical standards in the

         14  public sector, published this year by the American

         15  Bar Association.

         16                 Mr. Davies also authored a piece on

         17  local government ethics for the Newsletter of the

         18  New York State County Attorneys Association. All of

         19  our attorneys continue to write myths of the month

         20  for the Chief Leader.

         21                 This year the Board amended one rule,

         22  it's rule defining what lesser political office than

         23  that of Assembly District Leader of the City Council

         24  may hold under Charter Section 2604-B15. In this

         25  1999 amendment, the Board added membership on the
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          2  National Committee of the Political Party, of a

          3  Political Party to a list of permitted positions. In

          4  its consideration of this amendment, the Board was

          5  helped considerably by Richard Weinberg, who is with

          6  us this morning, and Felix Ciampa, who is also here,

          7  whose advice and insight on many aspects of the

          8  Board's work continues to be exceptionally helpful.

          9                 Let me talk briefly about

         10  enforcement. In 1999, the Board published the

         11  following enforcement results in cases concerning

         12  Charter Chapter 68 violations.

         13                 Mildred Sass, the former Director of

         14  Administration of the Manhattan Borough President's

         15  Office, used her position to authorize the hiring of

         16  her own private company and her sister's company to

         17  clean the Borough President's offices. Sass was

         18  fined $20,000 and found to have violated Charter

         19  Section 2604.A1A, B2 and B3.

         20                 In another case, a City firefighter

         21  was fined $7,500 for unauthorized moonlighting as a

         22  commissioned salesperson with a company that

         23  distributed equipment to the Fire Department.

         24                 The fine was collected from the

         25  proceeds of a commission that the respondent was
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          2  scheduled to receive from the distributor.

          3                 In yet another case, a construction

          4  inspector from the Department of Buildings was fined

          5  $3,000 for giving one of his private business cards

          6  to a home owner at a site where this inspector had

          7  just issued six notices of violations.

          8                 The inspector had written on his

          9  private business card the words, "all types of

         10  construction alteration", and he told the home owner

         11  that he used to do construction work and could

         12  advise her on such work.

         13                 The private business cards used by

         14  this inspector also contained his Department of

         15  Buildings pager number and the name Best Vending

         16  Service.

         17                 Respondent admitted violating 2604.B2

         18  and 3 of the Charter. This matter was also a

         19  three-way settlement with the Department of

         20  Buildings.

         21                 The inspector was put on an

         22  innovative two strikes probation, so that if he

         23  commits another Chapter 68 violation, he can be

         24  terminated summarily.

         25                 He was also required to cease using
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          2  the name Best for his private business because the

          3  name could be confused with the name of his City

          4  unit, the Best Squad.

          5                 In yet another case, Raymond Devalle,

          6  a former employee of the City Commission on Human

          7  Rights was fined for using Human Rights letterhead,

          8  typewriters and office facilities for his own

          9  private clients.

         10                 Devalle wrote four letters on

         11  Department letterhead to agencies such as the U.S.

         12  Veterans Administration, and a U.S. Consulate on

         13  behalf of his private clients.

         14                 He also listed his agency telephone

         15  number as the contact number on those letters.

         16                 Finally, Mr. Devalle admitted using

         17  his Human Rights Office to meet with a private

         18  client during City work hours, and to discuss the

         19  clients case and to receive payment from the client.

         20                 Devalle also admitted violating

         21  Chapter 68 2604.B2 and B3 and agreed to pay a $500

         22  fine.

         23                 The fine, which would have ordinarily

         24  been higher, reflected the fact that Mr. Devalle was

         25  then retired and too ill and also had limited
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          2  financial resources.

          3                 As table II shows, this year the

          4  Board has had the largest increase in new

          5  enforcement complaints in its history, and has also

          6  disposed of the most complaints, 80, ever in a

          7  single year.

          8                 We attribute the increase in new

          9  complaints to the increased visibility of our

         10  enforcement efforts, in addition to the increased

         11  awareness of the Charter through the efforts of our

         12  training and education unit.

         13                 With a full enforcement staff of four

         14  attorneys and one secretary, we have finally had the

         15  resources to close out nearly all of our numerous

         16  old cases.

         17                 The number of dispositions imposing

         18  fines to date during 1999 is four. Those fines

         19  amounted to $31,000, of which 9,000 or so have been

         20  collected thus far.

         21                 Two of this year's dispositions were

         22  there-way settlements with other City agencies.

         23                 Several other cases are nearing

         24  completion but have not yet been published.

         25                 During the first 11 months of 1999,
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          2  the Board referred 33 matters to DOI for

          3  investigation and received 14 reports from DOI.

          4                 The unit and the Board continue

          5  rigorously to select only the most important and

          6  provable cases for enforcement. The Board, however,

          7  has substantial need of its own in-house

          8  investigators to resolve smaller matters on its own,

          9  and we would continue to benefit from DOI's

         10  investigation of complex cases.

         11                 Finally, the staff has devoted some

         12  of its resources to follow-up efforts in enforcement

         13  matters concluded in previous years; namely, appeals

         14  in Cosoris case, and collection of fines in Fodaro

         15  and Sass, which the staff handled in-house rather

         16  than referring to the Law Department, which it has

         17  done in previous years.

         18                 We continue to develop strong ties

         19  with other agencies, as evidenced by the fact that

         20  half of our public dispositions this year involve

         21  three-way settlements with other agencies, namely

         22  the Department of Buildings and the Fire Department.

         23                 In addition, in 1999, the Board

         24  collected financial disclosure reports and/or late

         25  fines from all but two City employees who were
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          2  required to file financial disclosure reports or pay

          3  late fines for 1995 and 1996, they failed to do so.

          4                 We are also presently engaged in

          5  collecting financial disclosure reports and fines

          6  from delinquent City employees who have not filed or

          7  paid fines in 1997 and 1998.

          8                 The Board plans to commence new

          9  litigation early next year against these employees

         10  who failed to comply.

         11                 For these excellent results this year

         12  I wish to thank our entire enforcement unit,

         13  including Joan Salzman, our Director of Enforcement;

         14  Peter Nadler, Deputy Director; Ostrit Glotas,

         15  Associate Counsel; Beth Gluck Assistant Counsel; and

         16  Banona Baquat, Assistant to the Unit.

         17                 Speaking of financial disclosure, the

         18  Board continues to have an excellent compliance

         19  record. As detailed in Table 3, the overall

         20  compliance rate with the Financial Disclosure Law

         21  exceeds 98 percent.

         22                 This superb record must be attributed

         23  in large part to the excellent work of the Financial

         24  Disclosure Unit, Jerry Rachinowitz, Director of

         25  Financial Disclosure; Joanne Griolz, Deputy
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          2  Director; and Veronica Garcia Martinez, Assistant to

          3  the Unit.

          4                 The Financial Disclosure Unit works

          5  closely with the enforcement unit in eliminating the

          6  majority of the active non-filers and the late

          7  filers for 1995 and 1996. Two public servants remain

          8  in non-compliance and we are in the early stages of

          9  litigation against them. We are currently pursuing

         10  all active 1997 and 1998 non-filers and late filers,

         11  an anticipate litigating against those employees

         12  early next year.

         13                 During the first 11 months of 1999,

         14  the Board collected $25,775 in late filing fees,

         15  since the Board assumed responsibility for financial

         16  disclosure in 1990, we have collected $319,298 in

         17  financial disclosure fines.

         18                 As we have testified in prior years,

         19  the City's financial disclosure law far exceeds the

         20  State mandate, requiring many persons to file who

         21  have little or no likelihood of conflicts of

         22  interest. Requiring filing by public servants who

         23  are in a position unlikely to involve conflicts of

         24  interest waste time of the filers, their agencies

         25  and the Conflicts of Interest Board, and robs the
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          2  Board of money and resources it needs to conduct

          3  substantive reviews of targeted reports filed by

          4  officials who do not face significant potential

          5  conflicts of interest.

          6                 Working with the Law Department, the

          7  Board has therefore proposed to eliminate from the

          8  list of required filers those types of public

          9  servants whom, in the experience of the Board, no

         10  substantial reason exists for filing financial

         11  disclosure reports; namely, members of the

         12  management pay plan in levels M1 to M3, not

         13  otherwise required to file.

         14                 In addition, to bring the City's

         15  financial disclosure law closer to the state mandate

         16  and to eliminate the need to repeatedly raise the

         17  salary threshold, the Board is proposing to replace

         18  the salary threshold with policy-maker, the term

         19  used in the state law.

         20                 The Board is also proposing other,

         21  more technical changes to the financial disclosure

         22  law, such as requiring financial disclosure by

         23  candidates who win a primary election, and by

         24  candidates who fill a vacancy in a designation or

         25  nomination for city office.
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          2                 Currently such candidates are not

          3  required to file.

          4                 The Board is in the final stages of

          5  its electronic filing system for financial

          6  disclosure.

          7                 The software program itself is

          8  essentially complete, but the project has been

          9  suspended since August 1999.

         10                 We expect that our request for

         11  additional capital technology funds to complete the

         12  project will soon be granted.

         13                 The new version combined both the DOI

         14  and the COIB form for those employees, City

         15  employees who must file both. We plan a pilot

         16  project from May 2000 in which 1,000 public servants

         17  will file electronically.

         18                 Our goal is to have all filers filing

         19  electronically within the next few years.

         20                 Finally, let me turn briefly to

         21  budget staff and MIS. As I have previously

         22  testified, this is a great agency with which I am

         23  honored to be associated.

         24                 I am particularly impressed with the

         25  quality and depth of the Board's staff, and with the
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          2  energy and care that my colleagues and the Board

          3  bring to their work.

          4                 Last year I testified about our

          5  critical need to raise staff salaries across the

          6  Board to make us competitive with other city, state

          7  and federal agencies. Indeed earlier this year we

          8  lost our Deputy Director JoAnn Frye, who brought

          9  extensive administrative experience to the Board, in

         10  part because of a salary disparity.

         11                 I am pleased to report that

         12  additional funding this current fiscal year allowed

         13  us to raise some of our non-legal staff salaries to

         14  make us more competitive in that area we have also

         15  pending before OMB and the vacancy control board

         16  raises for some of our attorneys.

         17                 The Board will be requesting in its

         18  Fiscal 2001 budget sufficient funds to raise the

         19  rest of our staff salaries.

         20                 All of our staff are exceptional, but

         21  we cannot hope to keep them unless we pay a

         22  competitive wage.

         23                 In the administrative area, I should

         24  note that our Director of Administration, Yute

         25  O'Malley, and our Deputy Director Myrna Matteo, have
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          2  managed to keep our administrative boat afloat,

          3  despite since the departing of Ms. Frye, being

          4  critically understaffed.

          5                 Our new MIS Director, Anthony

          6  Bonelli, made great strides in substantially

          7  upgrading our information technology.

          8                 In particular, he oversaw the new

          9  installation of our telephone system that finally

         10  gives us not only voice mail but also audiotext and

         11  fax back capabilities. These innovations were made

         12  possible by the budget mod approved by the Council

         13  early this year.

         14                 I remain troubled, however, about the

         15  long-term future of the Board. We must ensure that

         16  the remaining salary disparities are addressed and

         17  promptly, for without a high quality staff such as

         18  we have now, we cannot hope to maintain our current

         19  level of excellence and productivity.

         20                 I am also disturbed about what may

         21  happen when we lose this Speaker and this Mayor,

         22  both of whom have been consistently supportive of

         23  the Conflicts of Interest Board.

         24                 I am concerned that the next Speaker

         25  or the next Mayor may not feel as you do about the
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          2  critical importance of ethics in City government.

          3  Ethics in government is not a luxury.

          4                 Before that happens we must adopt for

          5  the Board a more sensible and rationale budget

          6  process that will ensure that we retain a first rate

          7  ethics agency.

          8                 Thank you for allowing me to come

          9  before you this morning. I would like at this time

         10  to call on our training and education unit staff to

         11  demonstrate some of our training materials, Mr.

         12  Chairman.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON MALAVE-DILAN: Okay, we

         14  will do that. Before we proceed, however, I just

         15  would like to acknowledge that we have Speaker

         16  Vallone present and Council Member Herbie Berman

         17  from Brooklyn, we also have General Counsel Richard

         18  Weinberg and of course Felix Ciampa, Counsel to the

         19  Committee.

         20                 I also want to at this point ask the

         21  Speaker if he would like to make any comments for

         22  us?

         23                 SPEAKER VALLONE: We can wait until

         24  after.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON MALAVE-DILAN: Okay, thank
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          2  you very much. You can proceed. I just need to say

          3  that your testimony was very informative, and it is

          4  really great to have you here this morning.

          5                 SPEAKER VALLONE: Thank you, Mr.

          6  Chairman.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON MALAVE-DILAN: You may

          8  continue.

          9                 MR. TAUB: (Not identified for the

         10  record) We have the capability of customizing the

         11  game, or whichever agency that we are going to be

         12  using it with, picking contestants, such as in this

         13  case, it is a little bit big here but you can see

         14  our contestants are Peter Martin, the Majority

         15  Leader -- Minority Leader who I guess unfortunately

         16  is not here today, Council Member Berman, and your

         17  learned counsel.

         18                 And the game basically covers subject

         19  areas of the main areas where City employees might

         20  run into problems with the Conflicts of Interest

         21  Law, so we basically just make it an entertaining

         22  way to give them the information that they need. Let

         23  me try to get this, it is a big thing.

         24                 So, very simply, the vendor you work

         25  with in your City job pays for your $75 dinner at a
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          2  fancy restaurant, is that a violation of the law?

          3  Any volunteers? I see lots of nodding. If we had a

          4  little more room, if I set this up at that other

          5  table you could see. But this is a very easy way, a

          6  very portable way. I carried this equipment over

          7  here by myself, so we are looking to have this

          8  technology available to us whenever we go out to

          9  agencies, and we look forward to inviting you all to

         10  play the game at our next seminar.

         11                 We will just leave it at that for

         12  now, but if we want to set up perhaps a training

         13  class, you know, for new members at some future

         14  date, we can demonstrate it more fully. So, I thank

         15  you for your time for this brief demonstration.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON MALAVE-DILAN: Mr.

         17  Speaker.

         18                 MR. TAUB: If we had a speaker phone

         19  that we can access very quickly, we can very quickly

         20  go through the audiotext version of our phone

         21  system.

         22                 (Not speaking into the microphone)

         23  Basically you call, you go through the usual, you

         24  know, you hit 1, you have the opportunity of hearing

         25  30 seconds on various topics of the Conflicts of
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          2  Interest Law and Financial Disclosure Law, filing, a

          3  lot of the Conflicts of Interest Law topics, you

          4  then have the option of pressing a couple more

          5  buttons, keying in your telephone or your faxing

          6  number and automatically having a fax of that

          7  information sent to you. So, basically we are open

          8  in providing information 24 hours a day, 365 days a

          9  year.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON MALAVE-DILAN: Thank you

         11  very much.

         12                 Speaker Vallone.

         13                 SPEAKER VALLONE: Thank you, Mr.

         14  Chair.

         15                 That was a very interesting

         16  demonstration. I see you didn't put my name up there

         17  as a contestant because you know I have to win and

         18  that is very good.

         19                 Also, the record should show that I

         20  only eat at Mike's Diner and there is nothing in

         21  there over 9.99, so if anybody wants to purchase

         22  meals for me, they are invited over.

         23                 In any event, I am very pleased, and

         24  particularly I perused your book, Ethics 2000, it is

         25  an excellent compilation of the various items that
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          2  any City employee would be faced with well done. I

          3  would like to think you did this with the money we

          4  provided you, is that so?

          5                 MR. TAUB: We did.

          6                 SPEAKER VALLONE: Are you going to do

          7  this every year, are you just going to add on to it?

          8  What are you going to do?

          9                 ACTING CHAIR ROMANO: We have now the

         10  capacity to be creative and efficient in trying to

         11  promulgate information about Chapter 68. I don't

         12  know that we will produce this particular form every

         13  year, but we will continue to produce accessible

         14  information about Chapter 68 so that every employee

         15  gets to be comfortable with a very complicated

         16  statute.

         17                 SPEAKER VALLONE: Is there any way you

         18  can get this into the hands of our employees?

         19                 MR. TAUB: Yes. We can't send out

         20  300,000 of them, obviously. But certainly we

         21  distribute them at seminars, at training sessions

         22  and so forth. We usually do it in conjunction with

         23  some kind of training session, or when anybody asks

         24  for information, of course we send it out.

         25                 SPEAKER VALLONE: For new employees
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          2  particularly? Is there any kind of an arrangement

          3  that can be made with the Administration to get this

          4  into the hands of people who come on board?

          5                 MR. TAUB: Good morning. I am Less

          6  Taub, I am Director of Training and Education for

          7  the Board, and right now in conjunction with DCAS,

          8  we are always present at their Citywide orientation

          9  sessions for new employees.

         10                 SPEAKER VALLONE: Is that mandatory,

         11  incidently, the orientation programs?

         12                 MR. TAUB: Yes, it is. Yes.

         13                 And there are several agencies at

         14  which we do classes for staff. We just started with

         15  the Sanitation Department, the Department of

         16  Correction will be including this Conflict of

         17  Interest and their orientation for their new staff,

         18  so we are slowly building this in. And as the Chair

         19  said, with the graphics capability that we have, we

         20  can customize the leaflets, ethics for the new

         21  Department of Sanitation workers, and you know,

         22  really give them the nitty-gritty. This is a

         23  terrific book and we plan to use it on our classes

         24  but we will have the capability of really

         25  customizing information that any city worker would
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          2  need to make sure that they understand the law, the

          3  basics of the law and where they can get more

          4  information.

          5                 Because certainly the idea is that

          6  they will have questions and then that we will be

          7  available to answer the questions.

          8                 ACTING CHAIR ROMANO: We are certainly

          9  capable of handing out to every employee who signs

         10  on for public employment, but I think our collective

         11  judgment is that it is better given in the context

         12  of a program or a seminar or some educational

         13  experience, because even in simple language form, it

         14  is still a daunting amount of information and most

         15  public employees, my guess is if you just gave it to

         16  them, would flip through it and conclude that none

         17  of this has anything to do with their job. They need

         18  to be given the context to understand how these

         19  issues do come up in their employment or can come up

         20  when they leave the City government, or in a variety

         21  of other settings.

         22                 SPEAKER VALLONE: You did a remarkable

         23  job. This is within the last year alone, is it not?

         24                 ACTING CHAIR ROMANO: Yes.

         25                 SPEAKER VALLONE: And that is a good
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          2  example of how an agency so small can have such a

          3  large impact, and you are absolutely right, in terms

          4  of with a new Mayor, new Speaker and new government

          5  in 22 months, we have to make sure there is some way

          6  of continuing this. So, if you have any ideas in

          7  that direction, it seems to me that would be a very

          8  good undertaking for the next year, how we could

          9  best preserve what you have done, and make sure that

         10  they build upon it as we go into the new millennium.

         11                 I think you are one of the best

         12  agencies that we have had. I have a problem, as you

         13  know, with the appointment process. I think we

         14  should have, I don't mean necessarily we, the people

         15  here, but I think the Council should have a role in

         16  appointing at least half the Commission so they

         17  would feel more as part of the government structure,

         18  rather than it be just a Mayoral appointment alone,

         19  although selfishly for those of us who are thinking

         20  about becoming Mayor, I would rather make the

         21  appointments myself, I don't think that is -- that

         22  should be the norm. So, if you have any

         23  recommendations for the new century, I think this

         24  would be a great time to do them, and to spend your

         25  time this coming year because you will have a
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          2  receptive audience, at least on this end.

          3                 So, thanks very much for the job well

          4  done.

          5                 ACTING CHAIR ROMANO: Thank you.

          6                 MR. TAUB: Thank you.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON MALAVE-DILAN: Okay, I

          8  would like to acknowledge the presence of Council

          9  Member Jose Rivera, a member of the Committee from

         10  the Bronx.

         11                 Before I go into my questions, I am

         12  going to allow Council Member Berman to ask a

         13  question.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER BERMAN: Thank you, Mr.

         15  Chair.

         16                 Good morning.

         17                 ACTING CHAIR ROMANO: Good morning.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER BERMAN: I believe

         19  there are two vacancies still outstanding for the

         20  Board; do you know as to whether or not any steps

         21  have been taken to fill them?

         22                 ACTING CHAIR ROMANO: My understanding

         23  is we have regularly expressed our concerns to the

         24  Mayor's Office about the burden it places on us to

         25  operate three out of five. We are an efficient
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          2  group, as you know we meet monthly and in between

          3  meetings we handle a considerable amount of

          4  paperwork. I know that they are working on

          5  identifying candidates. That is all I know. They

          6  have heard my plea.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER BERMAN: Clearly you

          8  should have a full complement of Board members.

          9                 The next question is, I know the

         10  State Legislature is back in session, and one of the

         11  issues that probably will be before them is this new

         12  ethics law. They obviously don't have you guys

         13  around, so they have to strengthen their

         14  legislation.

         15                 And I understand that the law that

         16  they are playing with would have a vigorous impact

         17  upon what we do here in the City. Do you have any

         18  familiarity with what is going on there, Mark?

         19                 MR. DAVIES: Do you know if this is

         20  the same as the Governor's Program bill last year?

         21                 CHAIRPERSON BERMAN: No, I don't know.

         22  Possibly but I don't know.

         23                 MR. DAVIES: The Governor introduced a

         24  program bill last year that actually rose out of the

         25  temporary state commission of local government
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          2  ethics, that I used to be the Executive Director of,

          3  and I am familiar with that bill. I just don't know

          4  if this is the same. Today, this is the first I have

          5  heard of this.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON BERMAN: I spoke to

          7  several people last night and they told me that the

          8  reaction to that minor scandal they had with Philip

          9  Morris, that they now were going to totally, that

         10  they were looking at the whole issue but they were

         11  contemplating totally eliminating the possibility of

         12  any type of dinner arrangement with lobbyists, et

         13  cetera. I was just curious.

         14                 MR. DAVIES: As you may know,

         15  currently, the Article 18 in New York State General

         16  Municipal Law, which is the New York State Law for

         17  local government on Conflicts of Interest,

         18  specifically exempts the City of New York, except

         19  with respect to financial disclosure. The question

         20  is whether that would be changed or not.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON BERMAN: Well, I

         22  understand that there was some discretion about

         23  possibly changing and making us subject to the same

         24  law. I mean, we obviously have a much stricter

         25  standard to abide by than they do in the state
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          2  anyhow, so I don't know if it will be worse or

          3  better or what, but I was just curious. Obviously

          4  this may be just speculation of what a couple of

          5  people think so far.

          6                 ACTING CHAIR ROMANO: I can say this,

          7  if there is a proposal and it is circulated for

          8  comment, and we thought that there was an important

          9  purpose to be served by expressing a view on the

         10  subject, we will express a view on the subject to

         11  the State Legislature.

         12                 I could tell you also, that our

         13  interpretation and implementation and enforcement of

         14  Chapter 68 is complicated enough, I personally would

         15  remain skeptical of any proposal that would add

         16  another layer of complexity to it.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER BERMAN: Well, Mr.

         18  Chairman, I have always felt that we are all, those

         19  of us all in government here in the City, are

         20  subject to a much higher standard and appropriately

         21  so and we abide by it, and as a consequence we don't

         22  have the same level of scandal that you may have in

         23  other jurisdictions.

         24                 ACTING CHAIR ROMANO: Not only because

         25  of the good faith and honesty of the public
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          2  officials involved, but also because we have

          3  managed, after living with Chapter 68 for as many

          4  years as we have, people are actually starting to

          5  understand it. And in fairness to public officials,

          6  their job is difficult enough. It ought to make

          7  sense, the rules ought to make sense, and as I said,

          8  personally I would have to be persuaded that there

          9  is an overriding governmental interest in

         10  complicating this --

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER BERMAN: That's good. I

         12  am glad you have that attitude. You know, years ago

         13  we used to say, sure, and soon the millennium will

         14  be here, well now the millennium is here.

         15                 Anyhow, I want to again repeat what

         16  the Speaker has indicated, I want to commend the

         17  Board, I think you guys do an outstanding job.

         18                 I have personally benefitted many,

         19  many times by the rapid and immediate responses that

         20  I receive either in my direct calls to Mark or

         21  through Richard and Felix, and I want to thank you

         22  because I think you do an outstanding job. And it

         23  wasn't always that way. Years ago, when I first came

         24  into government, it was absolutely impossible to get

         25  any type of an opinion and the issue would often be
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          2  moot by the time the opinion would come in, and it

          3  is no longer the case and it makes life extremely

          4  easier for all of us. So, thank you.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON MALAVE-DILAN: Thank you,

          6  Mr. Berman.

          7                 You did a very good job in terms of

          8  having an informative report, so you have really

          9  eliminated the need for many questions. But I do

         10  have several.

         11                 In the past the Board has worked

         12  closely with the Mayor's Office of Operations and

         13  the Law Department on a proposed directive from the

         14  First Deputy Mayor mandating conflicts of interest

         15  training and the appointment of ethics officers in

         16  all Mayoral agencies; can you indicate what is going

         17  on with that? Do you feel that maybe a rule, an

         18  executive order or perhaps even a law is required to

         19  mandate this?

         20                 ACTING CHAIRPERSON ROMANO: I don't

         21  know that a law would be required. The issue, the

         22  issue that complicates this is that, how do you

         23  appoint ethics liaison officers in agencies and

         24  avoid the difficulty of having those officers render

         25  opinions or expressed views that are not consistent
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          2  with our body of law.

          3                 We want to avoid the difficulty of

          4  having an employee rely on an ethics officer who may

          5  not be able to speak for the Board or for the staff

          6  and what we are currently struggling with is how to

          7  define the role of that ethics officer so that we

          8  can be certain that the ethics officer serves the

          9  role of promulgating information and not giving

         10  opinions or giving advise beyond their expertise. It

         11  is more of an administrative issue that we are

         12  dealing with.

         13                 MR. DAVIES: Yes, if I can just add to

         14  that, I think part of the problem is that agencies

         15  are not all the same. In some agencies an ethics

         16  officer works very well. Obviously the City Council

         17  is a perfect example. Effectively with Richard and

         18  Felix, you have ethics officers here, it works

         19  great, and there are other agencies that work very

         20  well - the Mayor's Office. There are a few, the

         21  Comptroller's Office, the Board of Education.  There

         22  are some where an ethics officer, a true ethics

         23  officer works very well, there are others, I am

         24  afraid, where it would not work well at all. So, I

         25  think our current thought is not so much an ethics
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          2  officer, it is more like an ethics liaison.  If an

          3  agency wants to go beyond that, that is great. But

          4  what we need is someone who is at least a point

          5  person for taking on this material, making sure it

          6  is distributed, and making sure that training,

          7  ethics training occurs and that kind of thing. I

          8  think that is our current thought, more in terms of

          9  a liaison as kind of the baseline throughout the

         10  City. And then up to the agency if we want to go

         11  beyond that.

         12                 ACTING CHAIR ROMANO: We would still

         13  have to be careful in defining the roll of the

         14  liaison so that if an employee who relies on the

         15  liaison's information isn't misled, that is the

         16  difficulty.

         17                 And you don't have that problem in

         18  the City Council because of your two extraordinarily

         19  talented lawyers who are capable of giving sound

         20  advice and when they don't know the answer, they are

         21  also sensible about going elsewhere for help.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON MALAVE-DILAN: We are very

         23  fortunate to have them.

         24                 MR. WEINBERG: Mr. Chairman, if I may?

         25  We are not shy when we need help.
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          2                 ACTING ROMANO: Right. But that is the

          3  sign of an experienced lawyer.

          4                 MR. WEINBERG: That is what we would

          5  like to think. Thank you.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON MALAVE-DILAN: Okay, can

          7  you describe for the Committee what efforts the

          8  Board has made in the area of Ethics training and

          9  education at the Board of Education? And I know you

         10  touched upon that, but also, you know, are there

         11  additional resources that you may need to handle the

         12  Board of Education? Because this is really something

         13  new that you are entering into.

         14                 ACTING CHAIR ROMANO: I don't know how

         15  to answer the question about additional resources,

         16  because we just really are in the early stages of

         17  attacking this humungous agency.

         18                 We have gotten an extraordinary

         19  amount of cooperation from the Board of Education

         20  itself, and in fact one of our former staff members

         21  is now working at the Board of Education and is

         22  acting very much like a liaison, so that has helped

         23  us.

         24                 But to fully carry out our mandate,

         25  we may well need additional resources. We are
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          2  attacking the Board of Ed, sort of a layer at a

          3  time, using our education and training materials

          4  selectively enforcement matters, meetings with high

          5  level executive officials.

          6                 We have found the response

          7  extraordinarily encouraging, and Chancellor Crew

          8  should be commended for having set the right tone

          9  for an agency that size.

         10                 I think at the moment we are sort of

         11  taking it one step at a time. We may well need

         12  additional resources to do the job effectively. The

         13  Board of Ed is an enormous challenge for this small

         14  agency, and it is only recently that they have come

         15  to the view that we are the agency responsible for

         16  Chapter 68, not the Board of Ed itself. So we are

         17  just in the beginning phases on that.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON MALAVE-DILAN: Okay. I am

         19  sure during the budget process hopefully we will

         20  have more information on this, if you can really

         21  look into that.

         22                 First, I want to get into the

         23  electronic filing financial disclosure. You had

         24  indicated that you have the software ready. When do

         25  you expect to implement or require electronic filing
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          2  of financial disclosure, how do you plan to phase it

          3  in?

          4                 ACTING CHAIR ROMANO: Well, we are

          5  going to have the pilot project this spring where

          6  1,000 employees are going to be filing.

          7                 We are confident I think now that the

          8  software has all of the bugs worked out. There may

          9  well be some hardware upgrading that needs to be

         10  done at City agencies because our software runs on a

         11  modern computer, modern as of a year ago, probably

         12  obsolete by now, but City agencies, sad to say, some

         13  of them still have really antiquated equipment that

         14  cannot run the program so we will have to make sure

         15  that if we are going to require City employees to

         16  file, that they have the means for doing so.

         17                 I hope that within a year it will

         18  become the filing form of choice and most people

         19  will want to file electronically.

         20                 I know for us, it will enormously

         21  alleviate burdens on our staff and we can actually

         22  do some of the substantive reviews that really are

         23  meaningful. I cannot say at the moment that we are

         24  doing that because we cannot manage 12,000 forms a

         25  year, not with the staff we have, and frankly, in
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          2  financial disclosure you are looking for certain

          3  kinds of information that raise genuine conflicts of

          4  interest issues. That can best be done in today's

          5  modern world electronically.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON MALAVE-DILAN: Okay. I

          7  have basically two more questions in the area of

          8  staffing.

          9                 You had mentioned previously about in

         10  house investigators for small matters, how many

         11  investigators you feel you would need in that area

         12  and what would be the cost?

         13                 ACTING CHAIR ROMANO: Well, I cannot

         14  say I know what the cost would be. Because it would

         15  be a new area for us to venture into, we have

         16  discussed this internally with other agencies, we

         17  like to start small and see how we do, because we

         18  have enormously good relationship with the DOI. They

         19  are our primary investigative agency and as a client

         20  of that agency I think we are treated fairly well.

         21                 On the other hand, there are many,

         22  many small matters that can be dealt with very

         23  quickly if we could do it ourselves. And how many, I

         24  am not absolutely certain. We would have to survey

         25  the inventory of our enforcement matters. I suspect
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          2  that we could probably manage to clean out a lot of

          3  the small matters quickly and efficiently with one

          4  investigator, at least to begin with.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON MALAVE-DILAN: The next

          6  area is in terms of wages for your current

          7  employees, in terms of keeping the wages competitive

          8  so you can retain your employees, and I bring these

          9  questions up because very shortly we will be going

         10  into the budget process, and I know that the Mayor

         11  also has a representative here so maybe he can go

         12  back and tell the Mayor so he can include it in his

         13  preliminary plan, and we don't have to do it. But

         14  about how much money do you think it would take to

         15  make salaries competitive in your agency?

         16                 ACTING CHAIR ROMANO: I don't know for

         17  certain, Mr. Chairman. I know that it is a struggle

         18  annually. We compete for the best legal talent with

         19  every city agency. We like to think that we are the

         20  lawyers' lawyers in our agency. We have lawyers who

         21  give advice to other people, sometimes to lawyers,

         22  general counsel in agencies. To attract that kind of

         23  talent we have to be willing to offer -- we can

         24  offer lots of other challenges that make the job

         25  worth having, and many people who have come to our
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          2  agency love it and are sad to leave, but they have

          3  to because we cannot compete with other agencies

          4  because of the salary scale that other agencies

          5  offer to lawyers of comparable experience.

          6                 Those are the principles that are

          7  sort of animating our concerns about salaries.

          8  Exactly how much? I must say the Mayor's Office has

          9  been fairly sympathetic to our concerns, because he

         10  sees the quality of the work that comes out of our

         11  office and he recognizes it I guess because he is a

         12  lawyer himself maybe, he recognizes that to get that

         13  quality requires experienced, talented lawyers, who

         14  are capable of earning lots more money in the

         15  private sector, or even sometimes in other City

         16  agencies.

         17                 So, I am confident that we have

         18  receptive ears, both in the Mayor's Office, and I

         19  feel the same way about the City Council, so that

         20  when we come before the City Council during the

         21  budget process, I am confident that we will have a

         22  number that we can justify.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON MALAVE-DILAN: These are

         24  questions that we will be asking during that process

         25  and we look forward to working with you on these
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          2  issues, as we have worked with you in the past, and

          3  I am sure that the speaker will be very involved in

          4  this process as he has been all along.

          5                 So, if there are no other questions

          6  or any comments?

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER RIVERA: I have a

          8  question.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON MALAVE-DILAN: Mr. Rivera.

         10  Council Member Rivera.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER RIVERA: Thank you, Mr.

         12  Chair.

         13                 Good morning, Mr. Romano.

         14                 Just very quickly, I came in when the

         15  Speaker sort of touched on the future, meaning 2001,

         16  we have to file our disclosure by May 1st, that is

         17  correct, right?

         18                 ACTING CHAIR ROMANO: Yes.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER RIVERA: Someone

         20  seeking office, in view that a candidate would be to

         21  express interest when they officially make the

         22  ballot, I would gather, or even before, but do they

         23  have to file? Do they -- this happens after June.

         24                 MR. DAVIES: Yes, that's correct. The

         25  non-incumbent candidates file, I think when the
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          2  designating petition is filed -- when the

          3  designating petition is filed.

          4                 The problem with the law now is that

          5  if a vacancy is filled, the new person filling the

          6  vacancy does not file a vacancy denomination or any

          7  --

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER RIVERA: So, at what

          9  point are these candidates informed that they have

         10  to file?

         11                 MR. DAVIES: We work with the Board of

         12  Elections and the Campaign Finance Board, and so

         13  when that material is given to them, they also

         14  receive our material on when they have to file their

         15  financial disclosure form.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON MALAVE-DILAN: I just want

         17  to follow up on that and clarify something. When you

         18  say a vacancy, when a vacancy is filled that that

         19  person is not required to file, what vacancy are we

         20  talking -- are we talking about a vacancy on a

         21  designating petition? What are we talking about?

         22                 MR. DAVIES: Yes, that's correct. A

         23  vacancy and a designating petition. Yes, if a person

         24  drops out of the race, that new person under the

         25  current law is not even required to file. Which is
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          2  obviously just an oversighted defect.

          3                 These proposed financial disclosure

          4  amendments we mentioned --

          5                 CHAIRPERSON MALAVE-DILAN: That can be

          6  remedied by?

          7                 MR. DAVIES: -- Would remedy that.

          8                 ACTING CHAIR ROMANO: By amendment to

          9  the Charter.

         10                 MR. DAVIES: To the financial

         11  disclosure law, yes. Administrative Code.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON MALAVE-DILAN: Okay.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON MALAVE-DILAN: Our General

         14  Counsel Richard Weinberg.

         15                 MR. WEINBERG: We want to thank you

         16  once again for coming here. I was perusing your

         17  materials, I think they are extraordinary. Felix and

         18  I would like to believe that your new Plain English

         19  Manual may have gotten a little bit of help from the

         20  Council Ethics Manual itself. But yours is much more

         21  colorful and readable, I must stipulate to you.

         22                 You can, as Speaker Vallone asked me

         23  to tell you that you can always count on the

         24  leadership of this Council under his leadership to

         25  be supportive of the Conflicts of Interest Board. We
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          2  are big fans of yours, your work is absolutely

          3  extraordinarily important and you have done a

          4  wonderful job with the resources available to you.

          5  We will continue to support you and work with you in

          6  your projects.

          7                 Felix and I, just speaking for

          8  ourselves, are very, very happy with the idea of

          9  having a model program of having investigators

         10  coming out of the Conflicts of Interest Board, as

         11  opposed to another entity. It is the issue that we

         12  have been most concerned about, with no disrespect

         13  to the DOI Commissioners I have known and worked

         14  with, whether it is Howard Wilson or Susan Shepard

         15  or Ed Kuriansky, all able and wonderful professional

         16  lawyers, I think it is very, very important that you

         17  have the capacity in house to do investigations

         18  because of the perception that you truly are an

         19  independent entity and not controlled by one branch

         20  of the City government.

         21                 With respect to your point about

         22  getting more money for staff, I am very, very

         23  sympathetic to that. I think all staff should be

         24  compensated and rewarded for the hard work they do.

         25                 If it makes you feel any better, Mr.

             Legal-Ease Court Reporting Services, Inc. (800) 756-3410

                                                            55

          1  COMMITTEE ON STANDARDS AND ETHICS

          2  Chairman, and Mr. Executive Director, I have the

          3  same problem as you do. So, we will work with that.

          4                 Once again, on behalf of the Speaker,

          5  we are very, very happy you are here. We thank you

          6  very much for your testimony and your responsiveness

          7  to our questions and for the wonderful materials and

          8  we look forward to working with you in the future as

          9  always.

         10                 Thank you.

         11                 ACTING CHAIR ROMANO: Thank you.

         12                 MR. DAVIES: Thank you.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON MALAVE-DILAN: All right,

         14  Mr. Romano and Mr. Davies, thank you very much. And

         15  to your staff, thank you all. May you have a nice

         16  holiday season.

         17                 Thank you, and we look forward to

         18  seeing you in the budget process.

         19                 Thank you.

         20                 MR. WEINBERG: Thank you.

         21                 ACTING CHAIR ROMANO: Thank you.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON MALAVE-DILAN: Meeting is

         23  adjourned. It is 11:10.

         24                 (Hearing concluded at 11:10 a.m.)

         25
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